
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE CITY OF PETERSBURG

PETERSBURG, VIRGINIA



Joan Hall, Richard Pruitt, Thomasina Pruitt,

Vivian Curry, Elijah Sharpe, Eunice McMillan,

James Speller, Robbie Garnes, Leslie Speight,

                                              Plaintiffs

          vs.

Governor Mark R. Warner, Lt. Governor

 and President of the Senate Tim Kaine,

 Attorney General Jerry W. Kilgore, 

Senate Majority Leader Walter a. Stosch,

 House Majority Leader Morgan H. Griffith,

 Senator John H. Cichester, Senate President

 pro tempore, Speaker of the House of Delegate

 S. Vance Wilkins, Jr., State Board of Elections

 Secretary Cameron P. Quinn, 

all in their official capacities.

                                              Defendants.

BILL OF COMPLAINT

Civil Action No. CHO2-100



Serve:

Gov. Mark R. Warner



Office of the Governor



3rd Floor, State Capitol



Richmond, VA 23219



Lt. Gov. Tim Kaine



Office of Lt. Gov. Tim Kaine



900 E. Maine Street



Suite 1400



Richmond, VA 23219



Attorney General Jerry W. Kilgore



900 East Main Street



Richmond, VA 23219



Sen. Water A. Stosch



Innsbrook Center, 4551 Cox Rd., Suite 110



Glen Allen, VA 23060



Del. Morgan H. Griffith



PO Box 1250 



Salem, VA 24153



Sen. John H. Cichester



PO Box 904



Fredericksburg, VA 22404



Del. S. Vance Wilkins, Jr.



PO Box 469



Amherst, VA 24521



Cameron P. Quinn



900 East Main Street



Richmond, VA 23219

BILL OF COMPLAINT FOR EQUITABLE RELIEF

COME NOW the Plaintiffs, Joan Hall, Richard Pruitt, Thomasina Pruitt, Vivian Curry, Elijah Sharpe, Eunice McMillan, James Speller, Robbie Garnes, Leslie Speight, by and through undersigned counsel, and in support of their Bill of Complaint for Equitable Relief, state as follows:

1. Plaintiffs are African-American registered voters in the Commonwealth of Virginia and before the 2001 Congressional redistricting resided in the former Fourth Congressional District.

2. Plaintiff Joan Hall is an African-American citizen above the age of eighteen who is registered to vote in the existing Fourth Congressional District and was a registered voter in the former Fourth Congressional District.  

3. Plaintiff Leslie Speight is an African-American citizen above the age of eighteen who is registered to vote in the existing Fourth Congressional District and was a registered voter in the former Fourth Congressional District.  

4. Plaintiff Richard Pruitt is an African-American citizen above the age of eighteen who is registered to vote in the existing Third Congressional District and was a registered voter in the former Fourth Congressional District.  

5. Plaintiff Thomasina Pruitt is an African-American citizen above the age of eighteen who is registered to vote in the existing Third Congressional District and was registered voter in the former Fourth Congressional District.  

6. Plaintiff Vivian Curry is an African-American citizen above the age of eighteen who is registered to vote in the existing Third Congressional District and was a registered voter in the former Fourth Congressional District.  

7. Plaintiff Elijah Sharpe is an African-American citizen above the age of eighteen who is registered to vote in the existing Third Congressional District and was a registered voter in the former Fourth Congressional District.  

8. Plaintiff Eunice McMillan is an African-American citizen above the age of eighteen who is registered to vote in the existing Third Congressional District and was a registered voter in the former Fourth Congressional District.  

9. Plaintiff James Speller is an African-American citizen above the age of eighteen who is registered to vote in the existing Third Congressional District and was a registered voter in the former Fourth Congressional District.

10. Plaintiff Robbie Garnes is an African-American citizen above the age of eighteen who is registered to vote in the existing Fifth Congressional District and was a registered voter in the former Fourth Congressional District.

11. Defendants are: Mark R. Warner, the Governor of the Commonwealth of Virginia; Tim Kaine, Lieutenant Governor and President of the Senate; Jerry W. Kilgore, Attorney General of the Commonwealth of Virginia; Walter A. Stosch, Senate Majority Leader; Morgan H. Griffith, House Majority Leader; John H. Chichester, Senate President pro tempore; S. Vance Wilkins, Jr., Speaker of the House of Delegates; Cameron P. Quinn, Secretary of the State Board of Elections, all defendants have responsibilities of drafting or executing the Congressional Districting plan and all are being sued in their official capacities.

12. Plaintiffs seek declaratory and injunctive relief seeking a judgment declaring that the Commonwealth of Virginia’s 2001 Congressional District plan violates the Voting Rights Act of 1965 because it dilutes the voting strength of African-Americans in the Fourth Congressional District, enjoining the use of the Congressional District plan for future elections, and provide other equitable relief as the Court deems appropriate.

INTRODUCTION
13. This is an action to enforce Section 2 of the Voting Rights Act of 1965, 42 U.S.C.§1973 and 42 U.S.C. §1988.  The suit alleges that the 2001 Congressional District plan for the Commonwealth of Virginia impermissibly diminishes the voting strength of the African-American voters in the former Fourth Congressional District on account of race.  Count one alleges that the existing Congressional District plan dilutes the power of African-American voters to influence congressional elections in the Fourth Congressional District.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS
14. As a result of past racially discriminatory election procedures the Commonwealth of Virginia is one of sixteen states that are required to gain pre-clearance from the Department of Justice or the United States District Court for the District of Columbia prior to the enactment of new redistricting plans.  

15. On July 10, 2001, after being presented with several alternative redistricting plans, the Virginia General Assembly voted and passed the existing Congressional District plan.  Former Governor Jim Gilmore, signed the new Congressional District plan on July 19, 2001.

16. On October 16, 2001, after the submission of many comments encouraging disapproval, the Department of Justice pre-cleared the Congressional District plan.

17. The total population of the former Fourth Congressional District is 645,733, of whom 39.4% (254,167) are African-American.  African-Americans make up 37.8% of the voting age population (VAP) in the district.

18. The population of the existing district is 643,477 of whom 33.6% (215,935) are African-American.  The existing district decreases the population of African-Americans in the district from 39.4% to 33.6%.

19. On June 19, 2001, prior to the approval of the existing redistricting plan, the Commonwealth held a special election for the U.S. House of Representative seat in the Fourth Congressional District.  The candidates for the seat were Republican Randy Forbes and Democrat Louise Lucas.

20. Louise Lucas was the candidate favored by African-American voters evidenced by the fact that she won the majority vote in all but one of the majority African-American cities and counties in the district.  

21. The June 19, 2001 special election was held one week after the gubernatorial election and as a result garnered less attention.  This led to a low voter turn-out of 38%.  

22. Even under the conditions of a special election and a non-majority African-American population, Louise Lucas gained 48% of the district-wide vote a little less than the 52% majority vote for Randy Forbes.  

23. The Forbes/Lucas race indicates that in the former Fourth Congressional District African-American voters were able to significantly influence the election of a candidate of their choice.

24. The race also indicates that African-Americans in the former Fourth Congressional District are politically cohesive in that they tend to vote as a bloc.

25. Lucas did not receive the majority vote in the majority-white areas in the district except Suffolk City, in which she won by only a 1.5% margin in a 53.8% majority-white city.  African-Americans make up 43.5% of the population in Suffolk City.

26. The Commonwealth is still plagued with a racially divided election environment for instance, white members of the Democratic party were less willing to campaign for Lucas, an African-American woman, than they were for white candidates in other races.  There were also reports of white men removing Lucas campaign signage during the campaign.  

27. The anecdotal evidence and the election results of the Forbes/Lucas race indicates that the white majority vote in a bloc.

28. In an election that is not burdened with the circumstances of the June 19, 2001 special election, the African-American voters in the former Fourth Congressional District are numerous enough that with sufficient cross-over voting they would have the opportunity to elect a candidate of their choice.

29. The existing district decreases the number of African-Americans in the district thus dilutes the voting power of African-American voters to influence congressional elections.  

30. There were other alternative plans that would not have diluted the voting strength of the African-American voters in the district.  One such plan was the Congressional Plan 188 which increased the population of African-American voters in the district to 40.4%.  This plan allowed the population of African-American voters in the district to maintain its voting power to influence congressional elections while maintaining a majority-African-American district.  Another alternative plan, the Maxwell-Crittenden plan, increased the population of African-Americans in the district to 52.8% thus allowing African-American voters to realize a numerical majority in the district.

31. Despite alternative plans that were “less retrogressive”, the Commonwealth selected a redistricting plan that decreased the number of African-American voters in the district and thus diluted the voting power of African-Americans to influence the election of a congressional candidate of their choice.

Count One

32. The allegations in the preceding paragraphs are hereby incorporated by reference as if set forth fully herein.

33. Section 2 of the Voting Rights Act of 1965 prohibits the denial or abridgement of the right to vote to any citizen on account of race.  The act has been violated where the “totality of the circumstances” reveal that members of protected classes have less opportunity than other citizens to participate in the political process and to elect representatives of their choice.  See Thornburg v. Gingles, 478 U.S. 30, 43 , 106 S. Ct. 2752, 2762 (1986).  The United States Supreme Court has held that a redistricting plan has a discriminatory effect when the plaintiff establishes three primary factors (1) that the minority group is sufficiently large and geographically compact to constitute a majority in a single member district; (2) that the minority group is politically cohesive; and (3) the majority votes sufficiently in a bloc to enable it, in the absence of special circumstances, to usually defeat the minority’s preferred candidate.  Gingles 478 U.S. at 50-1.  

34. Virginia’s existing Congressional District plan has the effect of discriminatorily denying African-American voters the right to participate in the political process and to elect a congressional representative of their choice.  

35. The existing Fourth Congressional District reduces the population of African-American voters from 39.4% to 33.6% of the district.  As evidenced in the Forbes/Lucas special election, African-Americans are able to influence the election of a candidate of their choice while consisting of 39.4% of the district.  At a decreased population of 33.6% African-Americans lack the voting strength to influence elections and are denied the right to participate in the political process and to elect a congressional representative of their choice.

36. African-American voters in the former Fourth Congressional District are politically cohesive evidenced in the fact that, with the exception of one, all of the majority African-American cities and counties in the district voted for Lucas in the special election.  

37. A candidate that is preferred by the African-American population in the existing district can be defeated by bloc voting on the part of white voters.  

38. The existing Fourth Congressional District in Virginia has the result of diluting the influence of African-American voters in electing a candidate of choice on account of race in violation of plaintiffs’ rights guaranteed by Section 2 of the Voting Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. §1973.

39. Plaintiffs reserve the right to amend the pleadings.

Prayer for Relief
40. A real and actual controversy exists between the parties.  Plaintiffs have no adequate remedy at law other than this action for declaratory and injunctive relief.  Plaintiffs are suffering irreparable injury as a result of the violations complained herein and that injury will continue unless declared unlawful and enjoined by this Court.


WHEREFORE, plaintiffs respectfully pray:

41. That this Court enter judgment declaring that Virginia’s existing Congressional District plan is in violation of Section 2 of the Voting Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. §1973;

42. That this Court enter a permanent injunction against further use of Virginia’s existing Congressional District plan;

43. That this Court enjoin defendants from conducting any elections for the United States House of Representatives based upon Virginia’s existing Congressional District plan;

44. That this Court retain jurisdiction of this action until districting plans are in place that comply with the requirements of the Voting Rights Act of 1965;

45. That this Court award Plaintiffs their costs and reasonable attorneys fees pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §1988;

46. That this Court grant plaintiffs any further relief which may in the discretion of this Court be necessary and proper.






Respectfully submitted,


`



____________________






Beverly McLean Murray






Law Offices of Beverly McLean Murray






3297B South Crater Road






Petersburg, VA 23805






(804) 957-6300 (Telephone)






(804) 957-6304 (Facsimile)






Anita Hodgkiss






Lawyers' Committee for Civil Rights Under Law






1401 New York Avenue N.W.






Suite 400






Washington, DC 20005-0400






(202) 662-8315 (Telephone)






(202) 783-0857 (Facsimile)
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